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First Baptist’s proximity to the Appalachian campus has for the
past hundred years or so afforded the church incalculable
opportunities for ministry to collcgc students. Church records
indicate that such was the case in 1928 when pastor P. A. Hicks
and church member 1. G. “Tke” Greer, who was also a history
profcssor at Appalachian, urgcd the Baptist State Convention to
Cmploy a Student Secretary, i.e. campus minister, for the Baptist
students at the Collcgc7 an arrangement that continued until
2014. Through a long—tcrm lease agreement with the Baprist
State Convention in 1965, the Baptist Student Union (BSU) for
Appalachian State University conducted its student
programming from First Baptist’s student ministry building on
(,Zollcgc Street until fall semester 2000. In 2014 when the Baprist
State Convention discontinued its funding for local campus
ministers, First Baptist partncrcd with the Cooperative Baptist
Fcllowship of North Carolina to establish the App State
Cooperative Baprist Student Fcllowship (CBSF), and all CBSF
ministers since then have served part-time on the First Baptist
ministerial staff. The church originaﬂy bcgan incorporating
collcgc student ministry into its own staf‘fing scheme bcginning
in the mid—1990s. A prime cxamplc of First Baprist’s outreach to
Collcgc students is the Tucsday free lunch ministry which
originatcd ona rclativcly small scale circa 2005, but then grew
cxponcntially in 2013 to providc a free chkly mid—day meal for
more than 100 students. Most Tucsdays during the fall and
spring academic terms Collcgc students gathcr with church

members for an intcrgcncrational time of food and fcllowship.

Church governance is managed through an adopted church
constitution and bylaws and exercised through regularly
scheduled and called church conferences. According to church
records, the first iteration of the church constitution was adopted
in the fall of 1947. That and the subsequent bylaws have been
revised through the years to reflect changes within the church

organization. First Baptist members maintain an active service
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role in the work of the church through election to standing
committees as well as periodic ad hoc committees formed to

address special needs.

The venerable corner of King and College Streets which was
envisioned by the Three Forks Association in 1873 as the location
for a secondary school to be known as the Three Forks Baptist
Institute, was later to become the site for our second sanctuary in
1916 and has remained our worship and ministry home for over
100 years. Now in 2021 First Baptist Church joyfully embraces a
new vision of maintaining a vital Christian witness and ministry
in Boone and beyond with the slogan: “Sharing God’s love on this

corner, from this corner, to every corner....”

Sources:
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Chronology of First Baptist Church Pastors

e
Sy

1872-1874; 1876-1878
o

[. W. Thomas 1878-1886

E. Frank Jones 1886-1893; 1899-1903; 1912

1893-1895; 1904-1906
o
1895-1899; 1908-1909
oo
o
oo
RS

K

1927-1934

1934-1946
1947-195?
19521959

J. Boyce Brooks 1960-1971
Robert C. Mann 1972-1983

Steven C. Carreker | 1984-1994

L. Lamar King 1995-2001

Wayne Brown 2003-2008

Roy A. Dobyns, Jr. | 2009-Present

*Submitted May 2021 by the 150th Anniversary History Sub-team
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 Second Sanctuary 1916-1936

A Brief Historical Survey
of the First 150 Years

S eptember 1, 1871 is recognized as the official date of
organization for the First Baptist Church of Boone as
this is the date when the church joined the Three Forks
Baptist Association. Unfortunatcly, the exact date of its
organization cannot be determined because all of the
carly church records were destroyed in a fire at the
clerk’s dwelling on July 5, 1895. The church was known
simply as the Boone Baprist Church until circa 1930

when “First” was added to the name.
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The ncwiy formed church had a charter mcmbcrship of
seventeen with William Baldwin and J. W. Hall serving as co-
pastors. The Watauga County courthouse providcd the first
piacc of‘worship until it burned in 1873. Thereafter, the first
church building was a white, wood-framed structure that was
erected on Rivers Street in 1875, and that buiiding served the
congregation until a new building was constructed on the corner
of‘King and (,Zoiicgc Streets in 1916, where the present church
facilities are located. This new, red brick sanctuary was needed
to rcspond to the growing popuiation in the town of Boone and
the increasing number ofBaptist students at the Appalachian
Training School, which is now Appaiachian State University.
This second buiiding served the church until a new, scraw-
colored brick sanctuary was built on the same site in 1936. Initial
pianning for the latter sanctuary was bcgun in the spring of’ 1929,
but construction was dciaycc due to the onset of the Great

Depression in the fall of that year.

Continued growth prompted the church to bcgin construction

of an educational wing and ¢ 1apci in 1964 which was Compictcd
the foiiowing year aiong with an adjoining thrcc—story buiiding
that was erected aiong Coiicgc Street to providc acilities for the
Baprist Student Union. The next major construction project was
undertaken in the cariy 1980s and financed by a mogcti'lcr We
Build (TWB) campaign. This project providcd an expansion of
the sanctuary vestibule and portico and the addition of a stccpic.

The “Buiiding Into the 21st Century” campaign o “the mid—199os

was the financial arm of the construction effort that providcd
the elevator addition, a new Coiicgc Street entrance fcaturing a
covered drop-off area, and the installation of a Reuter pipe

organ in the sanctuary. The most recent buiiding program
dubbed “Rebuild, Restore, and Renovate” (RRR) was essentially
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completed in 2015 and had as its main 1982 Sanciuary Steeple Install

focus improved interior access to the
student ministry building (formcrly
the BSU building), handicap
accessible restrooms, improvcd water

quality, and a total renovation of the

fellowship hall kitchen.

Over the span of 150 years the church
has had twcnty»fivc difterent pastors
along with several interim pastors.
(Bricfbiographical sketches for most
of the pastors from 1871 to 1971 can

be found in Herman R. Eggers’
The First Baptist Church at Boone, North Carolina, which covers

the first hundred years of church history.) Many of the carly
pastors were bi-vocational and concurrcntly served more than
one church. It was not unti 1933 during the pastorate of P. A.

Hicks that the church was to have a full-time pastor.

To complement and extend the work of the pastors over the

years, additional ministers have been added to the staft to
providc lcadcrship and congrcgational care in areas such as
music, children’s and youth programming, collcgc—agc ministry,

as well as family ministry.

EBC Chorr Cirea 1957 Wit Chomr Director Hovt Safrit (lefi) and Pastor L.11. {1ollimgswortfi (right)
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Dr. J. C. Canipe, who was pastor of the church 1934-1946,
envisioned a thcological school to assist local Baptist pastors
who had little opportunity for formal training. From its humble
beginnings at First Baptist in 1946 the school was
cnthusiastically received and grew to the point where it was later
moved at the invitation of the Baptist State Convention to the
Fruitland campus in Hendersonville, North Carolina. After
resigning his pastorate at First Baptist Boone, Dr. Canipe
became the Secretary for Evangclism for the State Convention
while also serving as the first prcsidcnt of what is now known as

Fruitland Baptist Bible Collcgc.

First Baprist has 10r1g been rcgardcd as a church with a heart for
missions. At the local level, in 1951 it fostered the creation of a
mission Sunday School to be located in the lower Winkler’s
Creek area. From its initial location in an abandoned service
station, this mission church grew and was constituted as an
indcpcndcnt congregation in 1958 as Greenway Baptist Church.
First Baprist also has a long history of‘gcncrous giving to
missions, with an apprecia ble portion of each year’s budgct

bcing dcsignatcd to support mission causes at the local, state,

national, and international levels.

1991 I-BC Mission Tearn to Poland

Lay renewal was a theme for the
church in the carly 1970s as
programs were offered to promote
church members’ individual
spiritual growth while at the same
time the church bcgan to dcvclop a
vision of’ ministry and missions
bcyond Boone. In the late 19708
First Baptist pﬂrticipatcd in two
“sister-church” parmcrships with
other Baptist churches, the first

bcing with First Baprist Church of
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Essex, Maryland and the second with Heritage Baprist Church
near Charleston, West Virginia. [t was in the latter pairing that
First Baprist cxpcricnccd somcthing of a rebirth of‘lay missions
involvement as several trips were organizcd in the carly 1980s to
assist the Heritage Baprist Church in the construction of their
sanctuary. This West Virginia outreach served as a catalyst for
First Baptist men and women to exercise “hands-on”
involvement in missions and ministries such as disaster relief
and recovery, and extensive travel to both U.S.-based and
international missions destinations, and that enhanced level of
involvement has carried forward to the present day. This

missions focus has also extended to the youth and college-age

groups, WhO annually plan spring brcak or summer vacation

mission trips to minister to those in need.

Concurrent with the ramping up oflay missions work in the
1980s, the church also became activcly involved in a number of
community outreach efforts including the Christmas Day lunch,
hosting a slccping placc for homeless individuals (which was
later to become the Hospitality House), Habitat for Humaniry,
and providing support for community agencies such as OASIS
and the Hope Pregnancy Center. In 2007 the church bcgan
supporting and providing kcy sta Hng for the Christian

Outreach Center (COC) which operated at First Baptist as a
ood pantry and distribution ministry of the Three Forks

Association until April 2019, when its continued operation was

ully ﬂSSun‘lCd by our COnnggatiOn o
First I-BC Chiristinas Day Luncli 1986

The church has a rich

heritage of active
involvement and
affiliacion with the Three
Fork Baptist Association

(TFBA), the Baptist State

Convention of North
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Carolina (BSC), and the Southern Baptist Convention (SBC). In
1995, the church cxpandcd its denominational affiliations to
include the Cooperative Baptist Fcllowship (CBF) and the
Cooperative Baprist Fcllowship of North Carolina (CBFNC).

First Baprist has 10r1g rccognizcd the importance of women in
ministry and by the latter decades of the twentieth century,
women bcgan to assume an increasing role in church lcadcrship
througl'l election to church committees and to the diaconate and
as ministers to various age levels of students. Since the carly
twentieth century scores of dedicated First Baptist women have
shapcd and led various missionary circles under the umbrella of
the Woman’s Missionary Union (WMU), while also providing
the essential staffing for the missions education ofyoung
students through the Sunbeams (now Mission Friends), Girls in
Action (GAs), Royal Ambassadors (RAs), and Acteens. More
rcccntly, in 2012 First Baptist bcgan its participation in the
Baptist Women in Ministry Sunday in support of women called
by God to prcach and in 2014 a Ladies of the Church Retreat was

organizcd and is now an annual carly spring event.

Children’s Sundayp School circa 1957





